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Emily Clapp

From: Baugh-Jones, Hayden < >
Sent: 10 February 2025 16:49
To: Berkeley, Simon
Subject: Mid Sussex letter
Attachments: Mid Sussex letter 060225 H.docx

Hi Simon,  
 
Louise has done a re-draft. I have had a gander at it and made a few minor comments (and picked up typos). 
Overall, I think it’s better and more focussed that the previous version, albeit it remains quite lengthy. It could 
perhaps also be a little more tactful in places. 
 
I’d appreciate your views before I respond to Louise. 
 
Hayden 
 
 
Hayden Baugh-Jones 
Inspector Manager 
 
Local Plans Group 2 
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Emily Clapp

From: Berkeley, Simon 
Sent: 17 February 2025 15:52
To: Nurser, Louise
Cc: Baugh-Jones, Hayden
Subject: Mid Sussex letter
Attachments: Mid Sussex letter 060225 H.docx

Hi Louise 
I’ve read your draft letter to Mid Sussex.  I think you’re right to follow the path you have – from what you’ve said, 
it does appear to me that they have failed the DtC. 

I’ve made some suggestions and comments on the attached tracked changes draft.  Nothing earth-
shattering!  Have a look and see what you think.  I have commented that the first five pages (or thereabouts) 
are taken up setting out in detail what the legislation and national policy/guidance says.  I don’t think this is 
necessary and could be deleted or trimmed down significantly – but, at this stage, it’s all about remaining as 
safe as possible from challenge, and this doesn’t cause a problem in that regard.  Plus, I think issuing the letter 
expediently is a priority now.  So I’ll leave you to ponder that!   

Hope that helps.  Any queries, do give me a shout. 놴놲놵놶놷놳 
S 

Please note that the contents of this email and any attachments are privileged and/or confidential and 
intended solely for the use of the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient of this email and 
its attachments, you must take no action based upon them, nor must you copy or show them to anyone. 
Please contact the sender if you believe you have received this email in error and then delete this email 
from your system. 

Recipients should note that e-mail traffic on Planning Inspectorate systems is subject to monitoring, 
recording and auditing to secure the effective operation of the system and for other lawful purposes. The 
Planning Inspectorate has taken steps to keep this e-mail and any attachments free from viruses. It 
accepts no liability for any loss or damage caused as a result of any virus being passed on. It is the 
responsibility of the recipient to perform all necessary checks. 

The statements expressed in this e-mail are personal and do not necessarily reflect the opinions or policies 
of the Inspectorate. 

DPC:76616c646f72 
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Dear Mr Marsh 

1. Firstly, I would like to thank you for the way in which your team, 

together with other participants have engaged and helped me with 

my examination of the Mid Sussex District Plan 2021-2039 (the 

Plan). I apologise for the delay in responding. 

 

2. As you are aware I have been appointed by the Secretary of State to 

examine the Plan, not only in relation to whether it meets the tests of 

soundness, as set out in the September 2023 version of the National 

Planning Policy Framework (Framework) but also whether it is legally 

compliant.  

 

3. In my initial letter of August 7, 2024, I set out that I would examine 

the Plan in two stages as there were some fundamental issues, 

including the Duty to Co-operate (DtC), that required testing before I 

could be confident that I could move to the Stage 2 hearings.  

 

4. Following the end of the Stage 1 hearings I asked for various 

additional pieces of work to be provided to the examination.  This 

included , amongst which I asked that you provide any detailed 

evidence in relation to the DtC which you had not previously 

submitted, including copies of relevant agendas and minutes of 

meetings (AP0013). This was to ensure that you were given every 

opportunity to demonstrate that you had co-operated with the 

relevant prescribed bodies and complied with the DtC. I am now in 

receipt of the this and the other additional work1 which I requested 

following the close of the Stage 1 hearing sessions.  

 

5. I am aware that no neighbouring authority nor any other prescribed 

body has suggested that Mid Sussex had not met the legal duty.  I 

also note and  that signed Statements of Common Ground have 

been received relating to all the neighbouring Councils and some, but 

althugh not all, of the prescribed bodies. During the hearing sessions 

I queried whether this was significant and was told that I should give 

due weight to this, but that it should not be determinative as it is a 

matter for my judgment. 

 

 
1 Including the consultation responses to AP-018. 
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agreements with other authorities and provides further detail on how 

the DtC is to be implemented.  

 

18.17. The PPG explains in detail what is expected to be contained 

within a SoCG. SocThis includes, as appropriate; identifying the key 

strategic matters to be addressed; governance arrangements; 

housing requirements in emerging or adopted plans; how needs are 

to be distributed or agreeing the distribution of need across the area; 

a record of agreement or disagreement on key strategic matters, and 

the process for reaching agreements; any other additional strategic 

matters; and how the SoCG relates to other relevant SoCG. The 

SoCG is to be concise and proportionate to the matters addressed, 

and not to record every interaction. 

 

19.18. The SoCG are expected to set out the capacity within the 

strategic policy making areas to meet their own needs; the extent of 

unmet need; and any agreement or not, on the extent to which these 

needs are capable of being redistributed. Whilst it is expected that 

only one SoCG need be produced, it is possible to produce more 

than one. 

 

20.19. The SoCG are envisaged to document the activities 

undertaken in co-operating in addressing strategic cross boundary 

matters. The PPG sets out a list which is not exhaustive, of what 

LPAs should document. Namely, working together at the outset of 

the Plan making process to identify cross-boundary matters that will 

need addressing; producing or commissioning joint research and 

evidence; assessing impacts of emerging policies; and preparing 

joint, or agreed, strategic policies affecting more than one authority 

area to ensure development is coordinated, such as through the 

distribution of unmet needs. 

 

21.20. The geographical area will depend on the strategic matters 

being planned for, informed by a review of the strategic matters, and 

early engagement with neighbouring authorities and other 

stakeholders, based on demonstrable cross boundary relationships. 

This can include housing market areas and authorities should be 

pragmatic in determining the areas. The PPG sets out how housing 

market areas can be defined, including through migration flows and 

housing search patterns. 
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45.43. A SoCG15 with Crawley was submitted to the examination 

over two months after the Plan had been submitted and I have not 

been provided with earlier iterations. This SoCG was provided well 

after what could be considered a reasonable delay, particularly as 

the consultation on the Regulation 19 version of the Plan, had taken 

place at the turn of the year, after which there was little opportunity to 

influence plan preparation. The SoCG refers to the historic work 

which has been undertaken prior to the commencement of work on 

the Plan and the the wider Northern West Sussex HMA16, which I 

consider below.  A number of shared objectives are set out. It is 

agreed that a ‘robust and appropriate SHMA has been completed for 

each local authority’, and that MSDC has shared and invited 

comments on the site selection process.  

 

46.44. Nonetheless, I have interpreted the phrase ‘that each 

considers that they are doing the maximum reasonable to meet the 

housing needs’, in the context of Crawley’s Regulation 19 response 

to DPH1: Housing. Here Crawley set out a number of concerns 

relating to the submission Plan, including a recommendation that, ‘all 

potential sources of housing supply which might contribute to 

meeting identified needs are proactively explored…’17. This clearly 

suggests that Crawley did not consider that Mid Sussex was doing 

the maximum reasonable to meet the unmet housing needs which 

Policy DP5 envisaged and the DtC requires.  

 

47.45.  Moreover, the SoCG sets out that both authorities will 

engage with other DtC forums and references future work. Whilst this 

may be sensible, it is not relevant to the examination of the Plan as 

the DtC can only relates to activity up to submission.  

 

48.46. In sum, notwithstanding the examples of cross boundary 

work which have taken place, such as the co-operation relating to the 

allocation at Crabbet Park which falls on the boundary between 

Crawley and MSDC, and whose housing will contribute to MSDC’s 

housing requirement,  I am not convinced that Mid Sussex has 

engaged constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis during plan 

 
15 DC6 
16 DC3 and DC4 
17 Crawley Borough Response to Regulation 19 consultation. 
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Regulations. However, by this time the strategy of the Plan had been 

set, albeit the Regulation 19 consultation had not begun.  

 

53.51. I note that Mid Sussex did not formally respond to Horsham’s 

request, sent in late November 2023 until early March 2024. This 

was over three months later and after your Regulation 19 

consultation had been completed. By this time there was little 

opportunity to maximise the effectiveness of plan preparation.  

 

54.52. Moreover, whilst the letter was full of goodwill and 

commitment to continuing engagement, citing Mid Sussex’s sharing 

of its SSM and its maximisation of its housing supply, it did not 

provide any meaningful evidence of what, if anything, Mid Sussex 

could do to help Horsham. Rather it relied on the imprecise and 

vague approach to meeting unmet needs within the Northern West 

Sussex Housing Market Area (NWSHMA) set out within the Housing 

SoCG which I consider below. 

Northern West Sussex Housing Market Area 

55.53. The Northern West Sussex authorities of Horsham, Crawley 

and Mid Sussex haves long been recognised as an established 

Housing Market Area (HMA)19. They have a long history of working 

together with a wider remit than housing. However, my examination 

of the Plan and the DtC in relation to the planning of sustainable 

development can only relate to the period between the 

commencement of work on the Plan and its submission in July 2024. 

A General SoCG20 was signed in July 2024 but received after 

submission of the Plan.  

 

56.54. I appreciate that a joint Plan has not been taken forward. In 

common with my fellow inspectors who examined Crawley’s Plan, I 

consider this to be reasonable in the circumstances of each of the 

three authorities starting their plan making at significantly different 

times. 

 

57.55. Other than the Water Neutrality work21, much of the joint 

activity and evidence bases to which I have been referred, including 

 
19 Para 1.5, H1 
20 DC3. 
21 ENV13. 
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Yours Sincerely  

Louise Nurser 
 

INSPECTOR 



From: Berkeley, Simon
To: "PSMatthewPennycook@
Cc: Arthur Young; John Romanski; Sara Lewis; Andrew Langley; Ben Jones; Ed Francis; Gabi Wydrzynska; Plans

Briefing; Phillips, Rebecca (Inspector); Stallwood, Graham
Subject: Mid Sussex and Horsham Local Plans - urgent
Attachments: Mid Sussex and Horsham Post Hearings Letters PINS Protocol Note March 2025 .docx

MSDC DtC 18 02 25 1824.docx
Inspectors Hearings Interim Findings Letter 120325.docx

Dear Gabe/Holly

Please see attached Inspectors’ letters on a for information basis that the Inspectors
intend to send to Mid Sussex and Horsham regarding their emerging Local Plans.  A brief
summary note is
also attached, and the position is summarised below.  Are you content for
these letters to be issued by the Inspectors?

Many thanks and kind regards

Simon Berkeley
Professional Lead for Local Plans
The Planning Inspectorate

Summary
Section 33a of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act sets outs the legal
obligations on local planning authorities with regard to the Duty
to Co-operate (DtC). 
They must co-operate with neighbouring authorities, among others, in maximising the
effectiveness of plan preparation, and are required to engage with them constructively,
actively and on an ongoing basis until the plan is submitted for
examination.
Engagement is the key legal requirement.  The DtC does not demand agreement
between those concerned.
Sussex, Horsham and Crawley are identified within the same housing market area. 
The Crawley Local Plan was adopted last year on the basis that the unmet housing
needs of Crawley would be considered through the Duty to
Co-operate (DtC) and
anticipated that this would lead to contributions to that unmet need from Mid Sussex
and Horsham. 
Mid Sussex and Horsham had not committed to accommodating any of the unmet
housing need.  The Inspectors examining Crawley’s Plan concluded
that this
“cautiousness of … authorities to assist addressing the unmet housing need does not
represent a failure against the DtC on Crawley’s part”.
The Mid Sussex and Horsham local plan examinations are running concurrently.  The
Inspectors examining them have considered the extent to
which those two local
authorities have engaged with Crawley under the DtC with the aim of assisting.  In both
cases the Inspectors conclude that the DtC has not been met. 
In the Mid Sussex examination, the Inspector also concludes that the DtC has not been
met in relation to co-operation with Horsham and Brighton
and Hove with regard to
unmet housing need.



Taking all of the Inspectors’ conclusions together, they consider that Crawley did what
was required under the DtC in asking for assistance
in addressing its unmet need,
whereas neither Mid Sussex nor Horsham engaged as required in considering whether
they could assist.

Next steps
Following examination hearings, the Inspectors examining the Mid Sussex and Horsham
Local Plans are intending to write to the Councils to
set out that they consider that the
DtC has not been met and the plans are therefore not legally compliant.  Both
Inspectors are recommending that the plan they are examining should therefore be
withdrawn.

We recommend that the letters are issued to the two Councils without delay.
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PINS Inspectors’ letters: Mid Sussex and Horsham Local Plans March 2025 

Summary 
• Section 33a of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act sets outs the legal obligations on local planning

authorities with regard to the Duty to Co-operate (DtC).  They must co-operate with neighbouring
authorities, among others, in maximising the effectiveness of plan preparation, and are required to engage
with them constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis until the plan is submitted for examination.

• Engagement is the key legal requirement.  The DtC does not demand agreement between those concerned.
• Mid Sussex, Horsham and Crawley are identified within the same housing market area.
• The Crawley Local Plan was adopted last year on the basis that the unmet housing needs of Crawley would

be considered through the DtC and anticipated that this would lead to contributions to that unmet need
from Mid Sussex and Horsham.

• Mid Sussex and Horsham had not committed to accommodating any specified amount of the unmet
housing need.  The Inspectors examining Crawley’s Plan concluded that this “cautiousness of … authorities
to assist addressing the unmet housing need does not represent a failure against the DtC on Crawley’s part”.

• The Mid Sussex and Horsham local plan examinations are running concurrently.  The Inspectors examining
them have considered the extent to which those two local authorities have engaged with Crawley under the
DtC with the aim of assisting.  In both cases the Inspectors conclude that the DtC has not been met.

• In the Mid Sussex examination, the Inspector also concludes that the DtC has not been met in relation to
co-operation with Horsham and Brighton and Hove with regard to unmet housing need.

• Taking all of the Inspectors’ conclusions together, they consider that Crawley did what was required under
the DtC in asking for assistance in addressing its unmet need, whereas neither Mid Sussex nor Horsham
engaged as required in considering whether they could assist.

• The Mid Sussex and Horsham Inspectors are writing to the Councils recommending that the Plans should be
withdrawn.

Context 
Crawley 
• The Local Plan was adopted in October 2024 with a housing requirement of 5,330 over the 2023 to 2040

plan period.
• The Plan identifies an unmet housing need of 7,505 dwellings over the plan period.

Mid Sussex 
• The current Local Plan was adopted in March 2018.
• The emerging plan was submitted for examination in July 2024 with a proposed housing requirement of

19,620 over the 2021 to 2039 plan period (1,090 dpa).
• 2024 LHN: 1,039 dpa
• NPPF LHN: 1,356 dpa
• 2023 HDT: 142%

Horsham 
• The current Local Plan was adopted in November 2015.
• The emerging Local Plan was submitted for examination in July 2024 with a proposed housing requirement

of 13,212 over the 2023 to 2040 plan period (777 dpa).
• 2024 LHN: 15,487 (911 dpa)
• NPPF LHN: 1,357 dpa
• 2023 HDT: 62%

MPs 
• Andrew Griffith (Cons) (Arundel and South Downs)
• John Milne (Lib Dem) (Horsham)
• Mimms Davies (Cons) (East Grinstead and Uckfield)
• Alison Bennett (Lib Dem) (Mid Sussex)
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DtC background 
Crawley 
• The adopted Crawley Local Plan sets out the expectation that its unmet housing need (7,505 dwellings) will

need to be considered through DtC discussions as part of the Local Plan Reviews for the other authorities
within the Housing Market Area (primarily Horsham and Mid Sussex).

• The Plan notes that the “adopted Local Plans for Horsham and Mid Sussex districts had anticipated to
provide an additional 3,000 dwellings above their objectively assessed housing needs, in order to meet
Crawley’s unmet need. However, through the Local Plan Reviews this figure is likely to change, particularly
as the Standard Method increases their own housing requirements to above their current adopted Plan
commitments”.

Mid Sussex 
• The Council met with all neighbouring authorities in the Autumn of September 2021, setting out its

approach to housing, and accepted that unmet need from other authorities would need to be factored in.
• On submission, the Plan’s housing requirement was 19,620 dwellings with a proposed supply of 20,616.

The Council’s stance is that the difference – 996 dwellings – would contribute to the “resilience” of the Plan
(in terms of meeting the needs of Mid Sussex) and “unmet need” in the housing market area in general.

Engagement with sub-regional planning groups 
• There are two sub-regional planning groups that cover Mid Sussex – the West Sussex Greater Brighton

Planning Board (WSGBPB) and the Gatwick Diamond Board.
• The Council referenced WSGBPB as an active vehicle for navigating the DtC.  It last met in March 2021,

before the commencement of plan-making.
• In relation to the Gatwick Diamond Board, the Inspector notes that this body is only mentioned twice in the

Council’s evidence relevant to the DtC.
• The Inspector concludes that these groups have not played an active role under the DtC.

Engagement with Crawley 
• Crawley has made several formal requests for Mid Sussex to contribute to meeting its unmet housing need,

in January 2020 (before the commencement of plan-making), and in April 2023 (before the Regulation 19
draft Plan was finalised).  Crawley’s response to the Regulation 19 consultation reiterated that there was a
significant outstanding issue of unmet housing need.

• The Inspector’s letter notes that Mid Sussex and Crawley have been involved in wider housing market area
DtC meetings, but these were primarily focussed on procedural issues.  Whilst the two Councils did meet
twice, the Inspector concludes that “Crawley’s needs were, in effect, ignored in the absence of ongoing and
constructive engagement”.

Engagement with Horsham 
• The Inspector also has concerns in relation to engagement with Horsham.  Horsham wrote to Mid Sussex in

August 2022 suggesting that if the needs of the HMA could not be met that a further call for sites should be
made and the methodology reappraised.  Horsham formally requested that Mid Sussex contribute to
Horsham’s emerging unmet housing need in November 2023.  Mid Sussex did not reply until March 2024,
and undertook its Regulation 19 consultation in the meantime. The Inspector considers that the reply did
not say anything meaningful about what, if anything, Mid Sussex could do to assist.  The Inspector’s letter
concludes that Mid Sussex did not engage with Horsham in the active and ongoing way prescribed under
the DtC.

Engagement with Brighton and Hove 
• Mid Sussex is also partly within the Coastal West Sussex housing market area.  This includes Brighton and

Hove, which is constrained by the South Downs National Park to the north and the English Channel to the
south.  Evidence to the examination puts Brighton and Hove’s unmet housing need at 17,000 dwellings.

• Brighton and Hove made a request for Mid Sussex to contribute to meeting its unmet housing need in
September 2021.  The Inspector’s letter says that Mid Sussex had “minimal interaction” with Brighton and
Hove, and that their points were “dismissed without constructive dialogue or any otherwise meaningful
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exploration of the issues”.  It concludes that plan preparation has not been maximised and that 
consequently the DtC has not been met.  

 
Horsham 
The position and engagement between Regulations 18 and 19 
• Regulation 18 consultation took place between February and March 2020.  At that point in time, Crawley 

anticipated equal contributions from both Horsham and Mid Sussex towards addressing its unmet housing 
need (estimated at that time to be 5,925 homes).  The Regulation 18 draft Plan proposed a housing 
requirement of between 1,000 and 1,400 dpa, exceeding the LHN figure of 965 dpa.  This could have 
contributed towards meeting Crawley’s needs.  

• A draft Plan was prepared in July 2021 based on a housing requirement of 1,100 dpa.  The spatial strategy 
included a new village of at least 2,100 homes.  This draft of the Plan was not consulted on.  The Inspector 
cannot find any evidence of this draft Plan being considered “in any great detail” under the DtC. 

• Natural England published a position statement in September 2021 setting out that all development within 
the Sussex North Water Supply Zone, which includes Horsham, will need to be water neutral.  This is to 
avoid harm to the integrity of internationally and nationally designated nature sites in the Arun Valley.  

• Work began on a joint local authority-led initiative, the Sussex North Offsetting Water Scheme (SNOWS).  
Under this scheme, once operational, developers will be able to ‘buy in’ to SNOWS to offset water use and 
demonstrate water neutrality.  The Inspector’s letter indicates that SNOWS may be in a position to be tested 
and launched this month (March 2025).  

 
The position and engagement between Regulation 19 and submission  
• A draft Plan was published for consultation under Regulation 19 in January 2024.  The submitted Plan is the 

same as this draft.  It sets a housing requirement for Horsham of 777 dpa, against a LHN of 911 dpa.  It does 
not meet Horsham’s housing need or include any contribution towards Crawley’s unmet need.  The new 
village proposed in July 2021 is not proposed for allocation.  

• Strategic Policy 9 of the Regulation 19 draft Plan requires all development to demonstrate water neutrality, 
either through the use of SNOWS or an independent scheme.  

• A number of representations made under Regulation 19 promoting sites not allocated in the Plan include 
evidence to show that the sites concerned can provide their own independent water neutrality schemes.  
One such representation is from the promoter of the new village.  This is backed up by correspondence 
from Natural England’s Discretionary Advice Service which says the solution proposed “is suitable to avoid 
adding to the risk of adverse effects on the integrity of the Arun Valley sites”. 

• The Inspector considers that sites that could provide independent water neutrality schemes should have 
been discussed under the DtC in an effort to meet Horsham’s need and contribute to addressing Crawley’s 
unmet need, particularly given that SNOWS was not operational when the Plan was submitted, it was 
known that it would not be ready to use as a means of demonstrating water neutrality for some time and 
given that Strategic Policy 9 allows this approach.  There is no substantive evidence that such discussions 
took place. 

• The Inspector also consider that there should have been DtC discussions about the changes to the Plan’s 
spatial strategy since the July 2021 draft, to consider market capacity and the role of strategic scale 
developments.  There are no records of any substantive discussions of this kind.  

• The Inspector ultimately concludes that there is a gap in co-operation between January 2024 and July 2024, 
and that the DtC has therefore not been met.  

 
Next steps 
• Following examination hearings, the Inspectors examining the Mid Sussex and Horsham Local Plans are 

intending to write to the Councils to set out that they consider that the DtC has not been met and the plans 
are therefore not legally compliant.  Both Inspectors are recommending that the plan they are examining 
should therefore be withdrawn. 

 

We recommend that the letters are issued to the two Councils without delay. 



1

Emily Clapp

From: Berkeley, Simon < >
Sent: 04 April 2025 09:33
To: PSMatthewPennycook
Cc: Arthur Young; John Romanski; Sara Lewis; Andrew Langley; Ben Jones; Ed Francis; 

Gabi Wydrzynska; Plans Briefing; Phillips, Rebecca (Inspector); Graham Stallwood 
(PINS)

Subject: RE: Mid Sussex and Horsham Local Plans - urgent

OFFICIAL 

 
Hi again Gabe 
I’ve chased the team liaising with the Inspectors.  The letter to Mid Sussex has just been sent.  The team are 
still trying to get in touch with the Inspector for Horsham. 
Best regards 
Simon 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

From: PSMatthewPennycook < >  
Sent: 04 April 2025 09:25 
To: Berkeley, Simon < > 
Cc: Arthur Young < >; John Romanski 
< >; Sara Lewis < >; Andrew Langley 
< >; Ben Jones < >; Ed Francis 
< >; Gabi Wydrzynska < >; Plans 
Briefing < >; Phillips, Rebecca (Inspector) 
< >; Stallwood, Graham 
< >; PSMatthewPennycook 
< > 
Subject: RE: Mid Sussex and Horsham Local Plans - urgent  
 

OFFICIAL 

 
Hi Simon, 
 
Many thanks for confirming. 
 
Do you have an approximate time these letters will be sent today? If not, would you mind confirming 
on the chain once they have been sent?  
 
With best wishes, 
Gabe 
 

 

Gabe Allason ( ) 
Private Secretary to Matthew Pennycook MP  
Minister of State for Housing and Planning 
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
Sent: 02 April 2025 12:36 
To: PSMatthewPennycook < > 
Cc: Arthur Young < >; John Romanski 
< >; Sara Lewis < >; Andrew 
Langley < >; Ben Jones < >; 
Ed Francis < >; Gabi Wydrzynska 
< >; Plans Briefing <  
Phillips, Rebecca (Inspector) < >; Graham 
Stallwood (PINS) < > 
Subject: RE: Mid Sussex and Horsham Local Plans - urgent  
 
Hello Gabe/Holly 
Just chasing for an update on this.  I’m hopeful for a readout ahead of Easter recess if possible – both local 
authorities have been pressing us here at PINS and also MHLCG colleagues. 
 
Many thanks and kind regards 
 
Simon Berkeley 
Professional Lead for Local Plans 
The Planning Inspectorate 
 
 

From: Berkeley, Simon  
Sent: 26 March 2025 16:25 
To: 'PSMatthewPennycook@  
Cc: Arthur Young < >; John Romanski < ; 
Sara Lewis >; Andrew Langley < >; Ben Jones 
< >; Ed Francis < >; Gabi Wydrzynska 
< >; Plans Briefing <  Phillips, Rebecca 
(Inspector) < >; Stallwood, Graham 
< > 
Subject: Mid Sussex and Horsham Local Plans - urgent 
 
Dear Gabe/Holly 
 
Please see attached Inspectors’ letters on a for information basis that the Inspectors intend to send to Mid 
Sussex and Horsham regarding their emerging Local Plans.  A brief summary note is also attached, and the 
position is summarised below.  Are you content for these letters to be issued by the Inspectors? 
 
Many thanks and kind regards 
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Simon Berkeley 
Professional Lead for Local Plans 
The Planning Inspectorate 
 
Summary 
 Section 33a of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act sets outs the legal obligations on local planning 

authorities with regard to the Duty to Co-operate (DtC).  They must co-operate with neighbouring 
authorities, among others, in maximising the eƯectiveness of plan preparation, and are required to engage 
with them constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis until the plan is submitted for examination.  

 Engagement is the key legal requirement.  The DtC does not demand agreement between those 
concerned.  

 Sussex, Horsham and Crawley are identified within the same housing market area.   
 The Crawley Local Plan was adopted last year on the basis that the unmet housing needs of Crawley would 

be considered through the Duty to Co-operate (DtC) and anticipated that this would lead to contributions 
to that unmet need from Mid Sussex and Horsham.   

 Mid Sussex and Horsham had not committed to accommodating any of the unmet housing need.  The 
Inspectors examining Crawley’s Plan concluded that this “cautiousness of … authorities to assist 
addressing the unmet housing need does not represent a failure against the DtC on Crawley’s part”.  

 The Mid Sussex and Horsham local plan examinations are running concurrently.  The Inspectors examining 
them have considered the extent to which those two local authorities have engaged with Crawley under 
the DtC with the aim of assisting.  In both cases the Inspectors conclude that the DtC has not been met.   

 In the Mid Sussex examination, the Inspector also concludes that the DtC has not been met in relation to 
co-operation with Horsham and Brighton and Hove with regard to unmet housing need. 

 Taking all of the Inspectors’ conclusions together, they consider that Crawley did what was required under 
the DtC in asking for assistance in addressing its unmet need, whereas neither Mid Sussex nor Horsham 
engaged as required in considering whether they could assist.  

 
Next steps 
 Following examination hearings, the Inspectors examining the Mid Sussex and Horsham Local Plans are 

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
 

Please take a moment to review the Planning Inspectorate's Privacy Notice which 
can be accessed by clicking this link. 

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
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